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Hys te 1/ I r; J and - Gun I; 01lliU'y 

Owner: I]ip. 

Chapti I' 12 Tlw 

Artiol~8 73, 74, 75, 1h, 78(2). 

of Vanuatu 

Inheri tallce and O\'lIwl'ship of Customary land in 

1\ne1g, IIlwl; Village - J\neit:yulll. 

The Constitution of Vil',UilLII Chilpter 12, /\rtic1e 73 is put in the 

follol;l.ing termn 

" All \mld in tIle I~(~ptlbl lc of Vanuatu belongs' to 

the illdinC'nollS CI]!J Lom owners and their 

des, '~ndHntD" 

Art ic 1 e 7 I, prov ides til, I anti J. quote 

II The l'ul(1B (If cllnLollI [dlU,ll form tile basis of 

Ol;lllo I.'ship atlu lW('~ <.If land in the Republio of 

VtHll i '.ll:U" 

Article 70(2) io also I :lr{\[;ed in Lhe folluwing terminology, 

"The Govel'nl1\r~n t slla1l arrange for appropriate 

Cusl ')lIlary illstitutions or proceduren to resolve 

disl 1.lb~tl concerning 

lan('" 

the ownership of custom 

The Island Courts (pOW( I.'S of Hag~stral:es) Order No.1 of 1990 ,which 

prescribeD the powers function!) and dItties of Magistrates in 

respect of matters bef('~e an Island Court concerning diQPutGB a~ to 

ownersh ip of 1 and. To dea 1 I}I i. th allY land ilia t tel'S in Vanuatu a 

Magistrate mus\; first i.t l)(:? nOl'lIIinal:ed by the Chief Justioe, in 

accordancQ wi til Sect io;. 1 (2) of thee above Order. It is from thi 9 

provision that I was n .minated 1>y tll(~ Chief Justice to deal with 

the My s t e r y lsI and La n tiC 1':1 i In • 
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HISTORY 011' LAND CLAIMAN rs AND THEIR vJITNESSES 

ORIGINAL CLAIMANT - BAR~Y NANGIA 

"The Original Claimant i.n this claim i8 HI' Darry Nangia caused a 

message to be publishet1 in accordallc~ Order 6 Rule 8 and 9 of the 
" 

Island Courts Act Cap 1 ')7 as amended "to date claiming ownership of 

the famous Mystery Is l'1nd some ,three to four kilometres of the 

coast of the Anelgauhat Village and 011 which is located an airstrip 

serving the total popul ltion on the Inland of Aneityum. 

Followillg the above, th'! three other Claimant Messrs. Si las Naukai, 

Francois Waneyeg, and R)bert Naranehe({ lodged their claims with the 

TAFEA Is land Court Cler,!: in Tanna. I propose to cavass the evidence 

of each claimant as set out in the titulation of this case. 

Mr Barry Nangia gave lrngthy evidence which the Court sat for two 

and a half dayn to he,'r his evidence alone apart from his sole 

witness Nr Richard Willie. Mr Nangia's evidence is that because his 

father 111as and is still is greate fisherman, his father handed down 

those fialling rights to him. MI' Nangia tells a story about a mother 

and two sons. Ml' Nangia gives the namps of the boys as , NINYEG and 

l-f.J)VINIACAS. He does not give the mother's name. That once upon a 

time the mother decided to go fishing by herself. She told her sons 

to wait ... ,ltile she went 'ishing. That the lIIother got a local fishing 

net (NAULEJ weaved from tree roots fibre and proceeded to the reefs 

now surrounding the Mys ':ery Is land. I'll' Nangia says, Mys tery Island 

was once two separate little islands and in the process of time, 

they grew to be one isl,~nd. This vie"') is at least confirmed by the 

other tltr(~e claimants. 

That the mother then fished on the reef. She dropped her net on'a 

little bay called in their languaG!? "annecsenmanyau". That she 

could not draw the net lshore because it was full of fi~h. That as 

the resul t, the net wa') torn and the fishes ate the body of ,the 

mother .. The boys waited for the return of the i r mother in vain. 
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Tha t the boys I) lept th, t nigh t, they had i1. dream thei r mother told 

them she \oJas dead and she gave th(~lIl instructions to make a net 

(NAULE) out of "Nawae" (a local tree! whiuh fibre is used for fish 

nets construction) ba'k fitn·e. Tlwl: this dream wan repeated a 

number of time!). That (t} comp10lion (If tlw net , the boys proceeded 

to the reef and cast I:heir Ilet ancl luckily they caught all the 

devil fiE:hes except tl (~ lIIullc>t and Lhe "nap" lobster in Bislama 

., "Naura". 

. ' " That the boys took the fish ashore u'n thG mainland and started to 

cook them. By this tin!E' it waH ge~,tillr~ dark and as darkness fell a 

devil by the name of "NECDUH/\" sllwlled the fish and started to 

approach the boys frolll the lll.::t inland .::tnd he started to chase them. 

The boys \llere frighten"d of the devi 1 and they started to swim to 

the reef were l'lY9tery Inland is nO\l1 -1.nd to where their mother had 

been killed. 

The boys stood on the reef until d,lY break. That the devil corne 
" 

try ing to catch them h' 'wever ,19 it '',1<18 down ing the three of them 

stook'there forming tw' pillnrs of !ltones forming Mystery Island. 

According to NI' Nangia, the boys naHlr>S were NINYEA the first born 

and NAVINIACAS the secold. 

Nr Nangia so as the oth-~r three claililftnts do not however olarify in 

their evidence nor evell their witnes!'3es evidence what relationship 

does each of the i r sto I'y meall or han to the ownership of Mystery 

Island. Upon canvassj1 1g the evid(~llce of Mr Nangia.and upon 

examination of his famity trees, the lI.::tmet1 of the two boys told in 

his story do not appear. Messrs Nauk~i and Naraneheg told the Court 

similar stories, but on'le more they did not relate their stories to 

the o\lllH'?rship of Mystel',r Island. 

Mr Nangia goes further and suys in evidence that his father was a 

great fisherman for the Chiefs in his days. He says that his father 

is still alive today. IIr Nangia doeE) not however olarify whether 

his father is still a I~reat fishertn,:111 today for the present Chief 

Henry NClU Ii ta. He did not even call II i s father to give 'evidence' if 

he was still alive. Mr Nangia says that he interited his fishing 

rights from his father and that such rights were handed down from 

Netodi to Nadava who adopted NAKIUPOll 8/\11 to Yogom then to Allan 

Deidei (pronounced Teit-~i). 

;.). ,~, 
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One UOII flee fl'OIll Mr 1'1 \I1p,ia' s evidell'!p lIlut he gives overwhelming 

eviden()e? about his iJlI)'~ritel1tH? of fi!311i1lg rights frolll his father. 

He alu(l nays tllat his [ather lIad uC'I'Lnin fishing skills and magic 

spell~ Cur attraction of fish <"111,1 turtles. No other claimant 

disput"~1 that, 111' Nang G fatlle!.' was ," gr p '-1t fisherman except that, 

the OI.It"I.' clailllants 9,)·' their fore .f;ltltel'fJ IJlere also fishermen. 

It is (~8 tabl i shed by tile ev idence of the other three claimants that 

there wel'e certain peol,le ChOS811 by ;~h8 Chiefs to be his fishermen. 

The CIt.i e fs a 1 ~1() chased other peop 1 e 1;0 pe r form other onerous tasks 
" 

say 1'01' i llstan(Je, sOllie of hi's people would be? enagaged to farm and 

plant l.ill'O, sOllie to Idant yallls, SOllie ttl plant kava and some to 

raise pif(~L TIH?Se werp all fa\.' the? (:hief~J ulld even some to catch 

fish ul,d turt.l(,s. 

Accordill/; to the evidenoe before IIIf2, qui l"! appart frolll the Chiefly 

respollf:i.hilitir?s peopl8 their own Chiefs had appointed II)' 
.1 

the 

familir.'fJ and l:eibes t(· care for. TIH'Y l!Del to make sure there was 

enough \ ,J.ro, yam, 1<" va and pigs [or hiB tribe and families 

otherwi!_~i' thoGG enagptl in Chiefly ['(:'spoIl8ibilities would starve 

their r,'ll11i 1 ie!.: and I l.'ibes. l'lr Nilldcal uses the word "private 

fishel'llIilll". Thr~ uourt ,'sked him what. djd he lIlean by snying "private 

f ish e 1'111·:11 I " • he expl·l.ins that, ,J from those Chiefly 

respolln.i\)iliten, each person lIIade Fllll:e t1l<lt, there was sufficient 

~ish, Li.ll'O, Y.J.IIIS etc lor his family .''1.1\(..1 the tribe as a whole so, 

that L1If,Hle persons ellf'."ged ill fisiljl'e [OJ' the Chiefs were in much 

the p(m it ion those IlI,?r' formed other Chiefly 

re SpOlI~: i \, iIi t (? n . The fisherman hnf\ to also ensure there was 

sufficicllt yams, taro, kUlIlala or '-:VfJll IcaVil for his family and 

tribe. 

The [allti ly tl'f.~es ten(l~red La the Court by Mr Nangia were both 

accept(~d <M.F.I. "1 & 2" are according to NI' Nangia and his only 

witnenG IUchal'd Willi" represent Lite illheritenoe of Mr Nangia's 

tribe Cishing rights dating back nome ten(10) generations (see 

M.F.I. "2". J\ccording to Ml' Nangia's evidence the family trees 

repres(~llts their fishing rights that llilve been handed down from the 

. h' f ·1 t Lo the current gene rat ion. top 11\0:1 L persons 1n 1 f\ ~aml y . rees 
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In t ere ~J L i 1\ g I y, f1 rNa n g ,i '1 doe s not r e 1 n Let h e fa mil y t r e e s wit h his 

claim to the Nystery If'land. He does !lot even tell the Court if his 

great gr'E:'':lt, great gralld fathers CUflI.OJ1l<.lI'i.ly owned Myntery Island. 

All 1'11' Bangia f1':lYS is that because h.i ~J father was a great fisherman 

for the Chiefs p09sessjng certain finlling skills he should own the 

Mystery Island. Mr Nangia must not only prove that, his 

descend'::lnLs, O\'llled the island but he must also set a basis for his 

.. case uy layin[~ a foul'uation 011 on"Jr!l'ship of land on Analgauhat 

Villag(! l)Qfore ulaiminr. the Mystery Inland, 

Mr Naukae asked Mr Nanr::ia in cross-examination, \Jlhere is NETODI's 

land. He Nangiil. saysl'lat, t,his clailll is about Mystery Island and 

not tht~ mainland on An"lgauhat and so he did not wish to tell the 

Court unything about "wnership of lund in the mainland. To the 

Court i L was I'h' Nangia' s duty to prove that he owns the island by 

provinn that h(~ also O"1I1S land on the lIlainland thereby setting a 

basis [Ut' his claim. I'll Nangin did nut giv.;? to the Court any proof 

of any or his clescendaltts or even hi~3 futher farming or having a 
" house 01\ the 11ystery l!'land. 111' Nangi.::t could name every little bay 

reef, point or even n; lIIe each stOllP. on the reef surrounding the 

Mystery l!;land as he diu when crOSS-E!xamiIIGd by Mr Naukae does not 

in anyway autolll<ltically mean Mr Nangia i~3 the custom owner of the 

Mystery Island. 

I now cOllie to 1'lr Nangja's second witness 11r Richard Willie. This 

witness S<1ys ill evidenJe that, he ir: not from Anelgauhat Village 

and the Court v.sked hill' at the end of his evidenoe where he domes 

from. Ile says that he is from North I\lleityum - on Port Patrick. The 

Court henrd Riuhard Willie's (;~vider\(!e with suspioion due to the 

fact that he in from North Aneityum IlO"l all earth would he know the 

story nlJout ownership of Nystery Inland, This witness was quite 

frank ill the introduction of his evidenc!;? that he does not have , 
J 

anything to do "Ii th thE' Mystery Is land Clnim. Naturally if that was 

the case, why on earth give evidence. 

This wi tlless also sour.ht to tender t\,/o recorded cassette '0- tapes 

which Richard Willie Si'YS that one of the two is now a deceased:and 

the other is too old :0 walk to the Court. The Court refused' to 

accept the casset tea 011 the following grounds. 
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First L\1ilt:, HI' Darry U lngia nllOuld I!iwe l,eell the one to apply. for 

the Court: to u';cept thl recorURU evid(~\Ic(~ because 1'1r Nangia is the 

Origill':ll Claim,'nt. SeuIlldly, even if [11' Ncmgia had sought to tender 

them to the COllrt, it I'las dallGerous Oil tile basis that, what they 

were (l!Il~il\g tile CourL to do is ttl ncu('p t the contents of the 

oasset:I;~n as eviuence ('[ perSOIl8 who \'Jet'(~ not phisioally' in Court. 

Anyone l!(lllid hnve spo\u II in tllu8e t[lI"-'8 nn i I; would be hard for the 

"Court I; I) prove til is fo I fea r of f arbl' i. (HI. t:.i 011 . 

AlIlaz i \I[~ J Y , I'll' Nangia (Inly ua 1 feu UII{! w.iLness. There were three 

other \·,jl.nessen to be culleu but I.hey <:111 decided not to give 

eviuell<!(> nil ue\l.,lf of It' Nilngiil and 'IlIi.te ol'dQrly they wrote to the 

TAFEA 1!;Lmd C(lurt ClE'l:k at TiHlIlU j"diuilLillg or giving notice of 

their illlr!ntioll to withdra\'l. These wi.I:IlRfH18S \1ere Albert Nasaurel<e, 

Rita alld 1\llan Deidei. The Court Ilflleutilut Mr Nangia's father 

Allan D(~ i de i W'l.S in Co Irt and the UDlll't cannot unde rs tand why he 

could lIuI; be c<)lled as i.l witness for Ill' Nungia. 

FIRST CLf\ U1ANT -------. __ .•.. ------

Nr Sili.w NauluH' is the First Clailllullt 011 tlte Nystery Island Land 

case. IIR gave evidenc(l all out:h so \'I01'e with his two witnesses 

Messrs, Nagalllu Ludwig anu !'leGnk Lal "p. I'll' Naukae' s evidence was 

also lptll~l:hy. 1\t the COIJl1ll8nCf'III,?nl: or ili~l (~vidence Nr Naul<ae tells 

two nt:()l'i89 flimilar t·) tile Urigjll<lJ Claimant but with slight 

variatinn:3. I do Hot wi:Jh to L'estate Ill' N.:lulcae's stories here since 

it is :ill Ids ('vidence lnd allybody w.i niJir1f'. to read stories consult 

his ev.i(lptlce rOt' comparison aTld conLl·'ll3t purposes. 

I\t the ('lld of lh' Naul<.ap's h10 sloriRf! lie dl'e\o, an analogy of his two 

storie!l by sayi ng thaL 1\nelgauilat Vi 1 lagl? 1· (' 
" composed of a number 

of tril)<::!~;, but that e' en thoup,h eacll tribe may have a different 

traditiun.).l custom story about: the [U1.'l\Ii).t:i.on of the Mystery Island, 

all th(! 11[~ople of the /\nelBaulrnt Villu/1e trauitionally had access 

to the l-lY:Jl:ery Island. 

Ali; :A AU dd 2 2S£t§.iI¥J!&i&&6.=,'_ t. 
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Hr Naukne pres(?nted thlee family trePfJ, Tiley are marked "c to C2". 

He tranceD his family [,enealogy some ten generations uack. He gave 

a oomprehensive run down of his grent, gt'eat, great grand parents 

inheri l;(]llce riGht down l:o his falher rlemey(~n. From the family trees 

present(!ll, they also indica te iI111('1'i lance of the Chieftainship 

system from Chief Yaridawa right down to the current Chief, Chief 

Naulita. This lIIeans that; because Chief Henry Naulita does 'not have 

any. children. 11r Silas Naukae wi.1l b(~ 1II0st probably the next Chief 

of AnelBauhat Village. 

The next thing the first claimant analyses in evidence is' .his 

tribes customary land rights. HI' Nauk~e says that from Chief Nohoat 

right down to him (Mr NiJ.ukae) there llrlS been a chain of inheri tence 

of custolliary land which has not been brolten. That customarily,:' he 

is automatically entitJ'~d to o\>mership of I1ystery Island. 

The method by which Nr Naukae presented his evidenoe was most 

impressive. He first e!1tablishes that he is a man Anelgauhat,:by 

presentation of his gell'~alogy diagrallllilen on which one of them (sec 

M.F.I. "G") traces ten generation bacl~. Secondly, he establishe~.;.by 

his evidence ownership of certain parcels of land in and around~the 

Anelgaullut Village. He says that the land on the Anelgauhat 
'. 

waterfront belongs to his grand parents. Ile says that according.to 

custom stories, he is a real owner of thf:? Anelgauhat Village~, He 

says that frol11 the daY~1 of heathenism to his great great' great 

grand fnlhers Ladela, K'1tya, Abel, Tnsi, IJarengthen to his. father 

(Naukae'n), o\>mership of land wan handed down generation to 

generation right down to him - (Hr Nuuiwe). 

Mr Naukae says that by 1845, the Chu~ah come to Anelgauhat Village 

on Aneityum. That it was Chief Nohobt\t who looked after the first 

missionery Hr John Geddie and his men. lIe says that his great great 
.\ 

grand fathers Bold parcels of land along the Anelgauhat waterfront 

to John Geddie, various other e)q)ertriates and to a logging 

company. 

\ 
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In the course of hi s ev idence, I1r Hnul~ae was asked by Assessor 

Moses Napa how many tribes were and '-I.re in the Anelgauhat Village. 

Mr Naukae says that m;1ny meet ing9 lind b0en convened to determine 

how. many tribes were :J.nd are in Allr.dgauhat. That these meetings 

have oome up with a possible conclunion that there were and even 

today four. Thut these tribes are NAIH, NOHOAT, YAUFATI and NETODI. 

That there are names of persoIls who reprp.sen ted each tribe. St i 11 

in answer to another ques t i 011 frolll the Court Mr Naukae WdS asked 

who \llDf3 the first man to settle on l'Iyst;ery 

sayinc that there was non identifi';,d but 

Island. He answers by 

tha t howeve r d 11 the 

people of Anelgauhat Village had acu(!ss to fish only and that all 

settled on the mainland. 
., 

Mr Nauka(.~ qualifies this line of al'guement by quoting frpm pages 

100 and 367 of two books. The first ()rH~ "They came forSa,nJIe..c..Jo~J"by @", 
Dorothy t;\1 ineberg - a Resea roh Fe I lot·) in Pac if ic History Ins ti tute 

of Advanced Studies at the J\ustJ~aliall National University 

Melbourne published in 1967 and the necond book "NINETEEN YEARS IN 

POLYNESIA" by l<.ev. George Turner pu'blinhed in 1861 (Consult Exhibit 

"G"). At page 100 of the first book Ill' Nnukae highlighted in green 

a sentence that reads and I quote, 

"The Aneityumese cOllsidered it a haunted place and 

therefore willingly sold it to Paddon for an axe, 

a rug and a string of beads". 

'Then ft'OHl the second 1100k at page ~1(J'7, III' Naukae read by quoting 

and which I nmoJ quote, 

"He says they hav'.'? bought the island from the 

natives. Our teachers confirm this and add that 

the'! paid for it an U){e, a rug and a string of 

beads, it is mol'(' th<:l.!\ a mi Ie in a i roumferenoe 

without a coconut and hardly a blade of grass. 

It "'Ias considered by natives a haunted spot and 

heIl':Je they never plnnt!~d anything on it". 
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l1r NauluH1 goes on to !lay that prevj()uuly Mystery Island were two 

separate littlf~ island~3 with two di fferent names. The first one 

being NICEL and the 9!'cond N/\VINI/\C/\S. That both islands have by 

proceS8 of til1l{~ formed into aIle islalld nO\>1 called Mystery Island. 

Toward!) the end of hifl evidence, Ill' Nnukae argue that because his 

great, e1'eat, Grandfathers \>H~l'e the Chiefs of Anelgauhat Village, 

he is autonlatically to be the next Chipf and thus, he shall be 

r~sponsi\Jle for lookillg after Nystery .lsland. He further says that 
" 

he is IlO\oJ a custom own'~r of Mystery '\'slanu because his bubus (grand 

father) uere Chiefs in Anelgauha~,. 

111' Naukae says that ill heathen timefl, the people fished for their 

Chiefs, If they oaugl1t no fish, the fiBhermen would he put to 

death. Nr Naukae was cross-examined uy the original olaimant, if 

the statement that if fishermen cmlght no fish they were put to 

death true and if it \>F1S true had allY persons aotually been put to 

death. Ht' Naukae repli.ed by sayin{1 LlVlt, this was a saying and he 

does lIol even }{now if any nctual I'E?l'SOI19 were put to death just 

beoaune they did not !Jatoh any fish for their Chief. However, all 

the fishermen for the Chief were l'r>lIIindcd every now and then that 

if they came Hshore emp ty hallded Whf~11 [i ah ing for the Ch ief, they 

would be put to death. 

111' Naulcne says that his great, greaL grand father old Bareng had a 

oustom stone for oatching big fish. That old Bareng used this stone 

to k iII a wha Ie for G Whal ing Comp<ll)y ill about 18411-45. That the 

nalne of the stone is "NESGANgl1T/\N - NEROP ANELGAUHAT". The Bislama 

interpretation 

Anelgauhat". 

of I.he above plll'HSf.? is "Bareng's eyes in 

11r Naukae even tracen where the custom stone for fishing is. He 

says th':'lt his bubu , Dareng got married to a woman named Ema. That 

they had two 80ne, both died then D;:l1."(;~ng too died. Ema then got 

married to another ml'll from Itec Village. The new man's name wae 

NEBUA. That from thai marriage Ema and Nesua gave birth to a girl 

by the name of TAKAU. Takau then llW1Tied a man oalled Kanida. Born 

to them were two kid~l. 1\ boy called Tnkije and a girl Sake. That 

Takau told this story to her son TGkije. 

;:Xi.'" £ i . L$ 2tu .. a 4i U.L Xl 
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Mr Nau\cae reada port ions of 11 iss to temen t NFl "B" refer to 

pages 17 downwards and he saYG that it was not neoessary for the 

Court to take note of \"ha t he \'ws reading. (The simple reason being 

the statement above is -:llready with the Court. 

In cross-examination 111' Nangia asked llr Naukae what was 11r Naukae's 

fundamentill riuht. 11r Naukac ans\O](,~I'ed by saying that he is a 

"fishermilll and that he is looking fOr\<Flru to be the next high Chief 

of AnelGauhat,Mr Naukae says in anSW0V to another question that if 

he 'wins Nystery Island, he wnntsthe, Mystery Island to be plaoed 
, " 

under thf! responsibili':y of the cu1'l'ent Chief Henry Naulita and 

himself (Ur Naukae>. ~J Nauk,ae " sayfJ that he does not wish to be a 

Chief wlwil Chief Henry Naulita is still alive. It may he infered 

from 111' N<1ukae's total evidence that if oTle day Chief Henry Naulita 

decides to step down, 11r Naukae will be the next Chief of 

Ane IgaullU l; . 

The second claimant HI' Francois t~a\lieg also asked 11r Naukae in 

aross-examination what principals gbv11rned dispossession of rand in 

the Ane lCiluha t area. 11r Naukae answe )'ed by say ing I and I think he 

answered this question right, that ;111 the land in and around 

Anelgaulli1t Village belonged to oertain tribes and that there was no 

and even today suah th ing aH the ell i e f be ing the owner of all 

lands. That the Chief owned bis own land and the rest of all 

familien also had lands of their own. 

C'laimaIll; Robert Narane\leg also cross"examined 11r Naukae , how many 

Chiefs w(~re in Anelgauhat Vi llage. HI' Naukae answered that there 

were two Chief8 in the whole 113 land of I\llei tyum. But that in the 

Anelgauhat Village thele was unly one paramount Chief. This would 

mean to the Court that in the whole of 1\neityum , there were' two 

paramount Chiefs one of \oJh a III was froll1 Anelgauhat Village.,,: Hr 

Naukae' 8 claim to having one Chief in Anelgauhat Village" is 

sUbstan t i a ted by the ggnealogy d iagl'alnmen tendered by him and Hr 

11 N . and "(1" 'by Barry Nc\[jia <refer to 1I.F.I. D. Nansia 1 by r anglo. 

11r Naukae). 
, I 
I 



-12-

Mr Nauka(~ was also ask<?d by Nr Naran('hpg ""here is the custom stone 

for cu tell ing r i sh now. 111' Naukac rep 1 i eu that the 9 tone i 9 

ourrently in the possession of the family of Mr Naraneheg. He was 

furthe L' asked i r Mr Naukae exact 1 y )UH?\<1 how many parce 1 s of land 

did Mr N·:lukae' fi grand father had in and nround Anelgauhat Village. 

11r Nuukar~ once lIIore replied thut, be:lides the plots of land he had 

'. introrJuc(~d in his evidence, there al'P SOIll(? land belonging to other 

peop Ie and those who have been ,.dop tr:!d into the fami I ies of .. 
Anelgau)w t and that what he had p,:esented in evidence was his 

bloodl irH? <genr?alogy) "tenurial sy,~ tellt 

At the end of the cross-examination t.he Court asked 111' Naukae, what 

relatiunnhip does he have with tho. original, the third and the 

fourth ulaimant. 111' Nnukae ans,<1ere() by saying that 11essrs Nangia 

and Narulleheg have different family stt'lwtures. This he did not 

olarify if they had two distinct stl.'llcl.Ule.S or they both come from 

one struuture. he further says that, they are not in anyway related .' 
to him and I1r Francois Wanieg and L1lat ",ith Mr Wanieg, I1r Naukae 

shareD the SaI1H~ structure with him. 

The other two wi tnesses for Mr Naukae gave short evidence. I1r 

Nagalllu Ludwig confirms in evirJence in Chief that, 111' Naukae is a 

real and straight bloo·lline or of lilleal decendent of the paromount 

Chieftain system in 1\ lelgauhat Villilg(:? 111' Nagomu says that from 

the time he was a small boy he heard sturies from his bubu (grand 
I'" 

father) that the two 9111all Islands (llyntp.ry Island) belonged to the 

Chiefs. That they we] e never o\Omed by any particular tribe or 

group. That two islands were under t1H? (luthor i ty of the Chiefs of"', 
.' 

Ane 1 gD.ulla t . 

In cro8s-e:H1.mination, Mr Nagolllu was asked by Mr Nangia how. many 

Chiefs owned the two little islands. Mr Nagoffiu saye in answer that, 

Mystery Island was under authority of ollly one Chief one after the 

other ill order of the i r serv ing te l'IlW as paromoun t Chiefs of 

AI)e 19aulw. t Vi llage. He was further n91~ed why for the Chiefs only. 

Mr Nancamu said, because it was under tll~ir care and in ther basket 

(property of the Chief) MI' Nangalllu further adds that I Mystery 

Island \!Jr19 only used for fishing and that nobody lived there. 
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Mr Rouert NarDneheg c "as s -examined Nr Nllngamu and asked if the 

Mystery Island was C0111idered to be the property of the ohiefs at 

various points of time, what was the case with ordinary people of 

Anelgauhnt. Mr Nangamu answers by !:l.,ying the'lt, it was under the 

authorily of the Chief to send his rinhermen to fish for him and 

his people. That the Chief wag all oVf?I'all boss of the people. That 

he wag an overBeer - tJ la t the eh i e f did no t own the land. 

On closure of his crcls-examination 111' Naraneheg made a oomment 
" that it IIlas true, that there \'la9 ant:' Chief in Anelgauhat and that 

all the people had a r.ight to go fishing on the two little islands. 
" 

The next witness for 111 Naukae was 111'" l1esak Lalep who says that he 

does not see any relevence or importnnce of Mr Nangia claiming the 

Mystery Island alone. lIe says that nIl 1'11' Nangia wishes to do is 

take Bys tery Is land away from the J\ne 19auha t Commun i ty for greed 

and finnncial lusts. He says that all the evidence of Mr Nangia on 

how to cutch fish, the stone for catching fish and turtles do not 
" 

even l'c!iate themselve9 to the ownenlilip of Mystery Island. That 

Mystery Island was urH1er authori ty of each suooeeding Chiefs and 

not any individual clal s or tribes. lIe further says that Mr Naukae 

is the proper person te· claim since Ill' Naukae is a direct deoendent 

of the Cl1ief")::ain systel" in Anelgauhal:. Wi tness Lalep also oonfirms 

Mr Naukae's evidence that claimant Francois Wamieg is a olose 

relative of Mr Naukae. 

Mr Nauku(~ then closed ilis evidence by making a closing address ~ In 

his S\1(:)):t address, Mr Ifaukae Suys tlFl.t all the claimants inoluding 

him ar(~ from J\nelgauhat Village and if hr.'! 

Land Claim he wishes the Court to place 

wins the Mystery Island 

the ownership of Mystery 

Island under authority of the current pal'oInount Chief of Anelgauhat 

Village Chief Henry Naulita and himnelf. He further adds that it 

will nol lIIean that, Chief Naulita [11ld himself owning the Mystery 

Island bu t th(~y wi 11 look a[ tel' it [or the whole communi ty of 

Anelgauhat. 
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FRI\NCOIS WANIEG --------

The second clnilllant of tilis case in Nr \'1'ancois Wamieg. he simply 

says, that, he also comes from I\neJgauhat Village and that 

custolllarily he owns land in and arollnd I\llelgauhat Village and that 

Mystery Island is his. Hr tvanieg s:,ys that for a person to olaim 

Mystery Island he must prove and set his basis up by proof 

ownenJllip of land on the main land. 

The Court was so impressed with tIle evidence of Mr Wanieg too. Like 
" 

Mr NaukJe, Mr Wanieg opposes the cUllcept of individual ownership of 
" 

Mystery Islal\d. Infact, t.he last claimant Mr Robert Naraneheg 

shares Lhe same opinion. 

Mr "Jilll i eg says that over th.i r ty- L",1U yei.lrs now Mystery Is land has 

been in dispute. That many old genet:aLions have been dying away but 

the dispute on Mystery Island has \lever been solved. He says that 

that he would be really surprisod if Mystery Island is being 

awarded to a particular group o~'tribe. He says that the value of 

his cIn.im va lue$ more than money which seem to breed problem after 

p rob J e1ll. 

Mr Wnnieg presented a family strucl;ure a very simple one. (M.F.I. 

"B"), then explains the relatioll9ilip of persons named in the 

structure. Mr Wamieg presented a Bhort but comprehensive structire 

making it easy to understand. Mr lrJamieg says in evidenoe he has 

fortp.ell reasons why he says he also claims the Mystery Island. The 

first two reasons b(~ing that his grand father Nagareg was d real 

man I\llelgauhat. That Naganeg's great, great grand fathers were also 

men I\llelgauhat. 

That Nangreng's 9011, Namtiwan inherited land and fishing rights 

from his father. Thi,t from Namtiwi\\), his 80ns Kalambai and Numapon 

inherited land and fishing rights from their father Namtiwan. That 

on the sale of land to outsiders, hin great, great grand fathers 

sold land to a saw llilling company on the waterfront 9f Anelgauhat. 

To prove this Mr t~ .. lIIieg, tendered a copy of agreement for sale of 

land - see l1.F.!. "D". 
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That born to Ku lambai was Namo ted WIIO was Wanieg I s second father. 

He saY8 Lhat his father also owned certain parts of the Mystery 

Island r(~efs where his rather used t(l go for fishing. lIe says that 

his father Namoted was also a greatc fisherman for Chief Tasi. Mr 

Wanieg Soys that his b i.rth riGht \>l<J.f1 handed down frolll man to man 

and not to women . 

. ' In Exhibit "F" Mr Wani,!!, describes in detail portions of land which 

he claims for his tribe and his own. lIe snys in that statement that 

ali those parc(~ls of 1 HId we re "and his bubus right from time 

immemmorial until today. That these I,lots of land still belongs to 
" 

him and his tribe. He clso gives namE'S of certain portions of land 

that are still the S\ bject of dispute und which have not' been 

decided. Following thi8 Mr Wamieg te11ders another document - M.F.I. 

H" - a rf:!cord of a me~t ing convened on 13.2.90 by some of the i r 

Chiefs. 1\lthough it i~' not clear frolll exhibit "H" what was the 

decision, Mr tolamieg 8lYS in evidence that, the meeting decided 

infavour of him and he gives various reasons why he says he is a 
" custom moJller of all thclse portions of land he had identified in his 

evidence. 

Mr Naulcae asked Mr Wallieg in cross-examination who was 
,.) ..... .l 

father. HI' Wamieg says in answer th':lt his fatheri\Willie 

but that he was only C'dopted by Namoted. He was further 

his real 

Kopitana, 

asked if 

Kopitana was from theil' bloodline or not and Mr Wamieg says that 

Kopitar1a was from outside their genealogy. These two questions were 

raised ill regard to auquitision of land and ownership rights in 

case of an adopted son. According to the Anei tymese custom, an 

adop ted ~Jon dOf?s not h."}ve the fu 11 n ta tun of sonship compared to 

the natural SOilS of th(~ adopters. It is implied from the above two 

questions that, becauf'e Mr v}anieg was only adopted, he is not 

entitle to claim. It seems Mr Naukae contradicts himself here since 

he first says that 111' Wanieg should claim with him but then he 

raises questions that (Iebase HI' WaniPS's status to ownership rights 

to land. 

:Jl!JL:! 
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Vanuatu does not have an adoption law th<lt 1i1Ould guide the Courts 

on it9 consideration on the effect8 of either legnl or customary 

adoption. To get an auoption order in this country one must go to 

the Supt'0me Court. Tlv:l Constitution 8imply provides for reception 

or adoption of Briti!'il and French ImlS in force or applied in 

Vanuatll immediately bofore the Day of Independence is to oontinue 

to be tlpplied in VanUi\tu provided Ulal tlley have not been revoked 

or they are no t incons is tant 1/1 i th th(~ Independent s ta tus of Vanuatu 

and ib1 customs. Chapt'?r 15 I\rticle 95 (2) . 

For purposes of enlightenment on the question of adoption, I shall 
" 

now refer to a UK legistation, the I\doption I\ct of 1958. (see this 

one in llalsbury's Stal:lJtes of Engiand -' Third Edition 17 page 635). 

There are two other Bl'itish legislaLions on adoption. The Adoption 

Act 0 f 1'760 that re la t ':?d to revoca t ion of adopt ion orders in cases 

of legitimation that ilffecteu Section 26 of the 1950 Aot and the 

Adopt ion Act of 1968 \dlich provided [or extens ion of the powers of 

the UK Courts and to give effect and determination of adoption 

orden~ lIIade overseas. By seution" ~ subsection (2) of the 1968 

Adoption Act llIany sectins of this I\ct now were motified version 

fr01l\ U\f2 1950 J\ct. So that the main uOlllponents of the 1958 Aot do 

still apply which provisions do apply to effects of adoption orders 

and which are applicable in Vanuatu by virtue of Artiole 95(2) of 

the Vanuatu Constituti.on. But section 13 of the 1950 Aot provides 

for Rights and dut ies of parents und capac i ty to marry and the 

effects of adoption. Section 13 is irl the following terms. 

"Upon an adol·tion order being made, all rights, duties, 

obligations ;'nd liabilitien of lhe parents or guardians of 

the infant ill relation to u}{~ future custody, maintenanoe 

and educatilln of the inCant including all rights to 

appoint a guardian and (ill England) to oonsent or give 

notice of dissent to marry, Blwll be extinguished and all 

such rights, duties, obligations and liabilities shall 

vest in and lJe excerisable by and enforoeable against the 

adopter as i r the infant were a child born to the adopter 

in lawful wedlock; and in re:;pect of the matters aforesaid 

(and in Scotland in respect of the liability of a ohild to 

mainlain hia parents) tlH~ infant shall stand to the 

adopter exclusively in the pusition of a ohild born to the 

adopter in It\wful wedlock". 

I 

4 a ",.., 
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And subsection (2) says: 

"In any cases 

Bpouses shall 

the purpose 

orders as to 

where two spouse!! are the ndopters, the 

in respect of the lIIatters aforesaid, and for 

(If the jurisdictioll of any Court to make 

:he custody alJd maintenance of and right of 

(1CCeSB to Chi 1 dren 9 tand to each other and to the infant 

in the same relation as they would have stood if they had 

been the lawf1ll father and motlH?r of the infant and the 

infant shall !1tand to them in the same relation as to a 

lawful father and mother". 

The Joint Regulations,. Volumes I, II & III oannot give me any 
" 

assisUl1IUe. Thut being 90 the legal adop~ion in Vanuatu would be 

guided by the above legislation. To me what the above quotations 

8eem to Gay is that, ;:1.0 adop ted chi Id becomes the chi ld of the 

adopters, and the adop ters become the parents of the chi ld, as if 

the chi Id had ueen borl1 to the adoptr~[,9 ill lawful wedlock and that 

the adopted chi Id cea!' es to be a chi Id of any person who was a 

parent (whether natural or adoptive) of the child before the making 
" 

of the adoption order and that any suah person oeases to be a 

parent of the child. 

What is the case with customary adoption in Aneityum. Chapter. 15 

Article 95(3) of the Vanua·tu Constitution provides that oustomary 

law must continue to hilve effect as part of the law of the Republic 

of Vanuatu. What if a CustOIll is say for instanoe repugnant to the 

peneral principles (If humunity or [or arguement shake is 

incor19istent with the Constitution itself. Must such oustoms or 

practicen be continued to have effect as part of .the law in 

Vanuatu? I do not agree for the following reasons. First weighing 

the two concepts of adoption in Vanuatu, the legal and oustomary. 

The later concept in provides that a c11ild adopted - particularly a 

son, does not have the full status of a son in terms of ownership 

of 1 and and the U. K. concep t 9 ta b'!d in sect ion 13 of the 1958 

British Adoption Aot, customary adoption seems to disoriminate 

against those \oJho have been adopted. The legal conoept Seems to say 

one thing while the cUltomary concept say something else. It is my 

opinion that 1\rticle 9!)(3) of the COllstitution is not applioable in 

respect of customs which are inconsistent with the Constitution or 

statutp. or which arp repugnant Lo the general prinoiples of 

humanity. 

IIMUA.%".~ 
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Articl(-? '7 of the VanlFltu Constitution. 1\rticle 7 is put in the 

following termD 

"Every pe~son had the following fundamental duties 

to himself and his uecelldents and to others. 

(a) ::0 respect and to nc t in the spi ri t . of the 

(!onsti tution 

(b) 1:0 recognise dlat he oan fully develop his 

"bilitie8 and iJdvance his true interests only 

hy active participation in the development of 

'he national cummunity. 

(c) 

I 
I 

(d) 

(e) 10 work according to his talents in socially 

use ful elllp loyn\l~11 t al\d if necessary, to create 

for himself leeitimate opportunities for such 

PiliP 1 0Ylllell t j 

(f) to respect the rights and freedoms of others 

i'nd to cooper<l te fu 11 Y wi th others in the 

nterests of illterdependence and solidarity; 

(g) to contribute, as required by law, according 

to his means, to the revenues required for 

I he advancement of the Republ ic of Vanuatu 

.. 'nd the attainment of the national 

objectives; 

, 

~. 
! 

I 
I 
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0"1> in the Close of a parent, to slIpport assist 

end educate all his children, IC?gitimate and 

in particular to give a true 

understanding of their fundament~l rights and 

{luties al\d of the notional objeutives and of 

I he cu 1 ture and cus tOIllS of the people of 

\'anuatu i 

(i) .In the case of a child, to respeot his 

I'arents. --

It is' my opinion there i'ore 1;hat, 'the customary adoptiqn oonoept in 

An'eityullI is not in thc' Spirit of Vanuatu Constitutioll, beoause it 

oonfliots with the above provisos of the Vanuatu Con'1titution. It 

has been proved in (videnoe in the Court that HI- Waineg was 

ous tomari 1 y adopted. Sf) that Franooi f1 vlan leg has the full right to 

ownership of land from his adoptive father. 

At the uoncluoion of his " case Hr tl};:ulieg introduoed to Court two 

eta temen ts be longing t Q hi s two wi tllesses who were not present in 

Court, w(:~re read to CO'lrt by the TJ\FEI\ Is land Court c: I.erk and were 

aocepted and marked H.F.I. J&K. 

One thing mentioned by the two witnesses statem(-nts is that 

aocording to the Aneitjumese oustom, ownership of land starts from 

land to the reef. Title conoept io oonsistent witlt HI' Naukae's 

rev idence. The lega 1 de reni t iOl1s of land prov ided in the Land Leases ~(: 
Act Cap 1.63 and the Land Reform Act Cap 123 have sligllt variations. 

'The defenition that suits the purpose of this cliscussion is 

provided in the Land Reform J\ct Cap 123. Land i'l defined as Ii 

follo\"8 : 

"Land" includes improvements there('n of affixed 

the1'2to and land under water illcluding land 

extpllding to the f.1ea of any offsh01'e reef but no 

further" and I quote. 
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Mr Wanieg two witnesses statement an(1 the evidence of Mr Naukae and 

his winees seem to agree with the legal defenition of land in 

Vanuatu and therefore I accept their evidence that ownership of 

land in Aneityum commences from I.and and includes reefs and 

offshol.'e reefs. 

The lant two wi tnesses that were (!;llled by Nr Wanieg gave very 

" short evidence each and I do not wisli to explore their evidenoe in 

detai I e)wept to say that each wi tlles9 said Mr Wanieg is also a 
" ,I 

custom ovmer of certain plots of land ill Anelgauhat and that Mr 

Wamieg is a real man -0-nelgauhat. ,~n Ilis ulosing address, Mr Wanieg 

says that, the evidenc< that"he has called is proof that he is also 

a "man Anelgauhat". 

claimants who have 

He says that it is not only Mr Nagia and other 

ol'nersh ip rig\) t to Mys tery Is land. He says 

Island does Bot belong to any partioular 

belongs to .tIl the people of Anelgauhat 

therefore that Mystery 

group or tribe but i I 

Village. 

" 
THIRD CLAIMANT I'lR ROBEl T NARANEIIEG 

The tid I'd olaimant Rot ert Naraneheg also introduoes himself as a 

lIIan AnelGauhat He al,so tells similar story as told by Messrs 

Nangia and Naukae on ti,e formation of the Mystery Island. I do not 

wish to restate what MJ Naraneheg haH stated for the simple reason 

tha t, 11 ins tory carr i ~s the some idea on the formation of the 

Mystery Island. What i! essential about Nr Naraneheg's evidenoe is 
,.-' 

he says tlla t N/\VINVACA 1 and NINYEC (l'lys tery Island> be long to the 

people of Anelgauhat. 

Mr Narnneheg gives an history of illheretance right down to his 

time. lIe says that, in his knmdedge, he knows that Mystery Island 

belongs to all the people and not to any particular person. That 

hi's great great grand fathers from LU11lai to Kanida were also 

fishermell for Chiefs Yaridowa, Nohoat and Ladela at different time. 

Mr Naraneheg being the last claimant in this cla.im seems 

the same opinion of ownership of tile l1ystery Island as 

to have 

that of 

claimants Silas Naukae and Francois Wanieg. Their ooncern is there 

is no p089 i bil i ty of individual ownersh ip of Mystery Is land but 

that the island shou ld be kept for the good of all the peop Ie in 

Anelgauhat Village. 
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The stories told by tie original clainwllt, Claimnant 1 & 3 are 

suggestive of the facl that \'lithin I\nelgauhat Village, there were 

and even today they h:lve various tribes baving their own story 

about thr? formation (r Mystery Island. This is why it may be 

correct to infer that it was not possible for anyone person alone 

to own land in the Ane.1gauhat area. This Court is dealing with the 

Mystery Island and not the land on Wllich I\nelgauhat Village stands, 

however, the Court seel a purpose for tilis. They did it to prove 

that they are all men I\nelgauhat and not just from somewhere. The 

COJ-lrt alGa noted that 1'11' Naran~heg does not identify his name on 
" 

the family trees he presented as \'1ell one will note from his 

evidence that he does' Ilot refer liln his evidence to himself as "I" 

but ins tead I he says, "We" The reaGons why he gave his evidenoe 

this way is as he la :;er said in ul'o9s-examination by Mr Barry 

Nangia that he does nol claim for himself but for all the people in 

Anelgaulwt. 

The ne~{t wi tn(~ss is {'Ir IVIT1\U SOPE who says that he is from 

Anelgauhat Village and that his g1J6lHl father Takije had told him 

that Talcije waG the on'? who fished for the Chief. That Takije had 

also told him that Yaul'ati was married to Pialau. Born to Yaufati 

and Pialau was girl b:,' name Ei\.\(l,l that Emu married a man called ~~ 
NESUA. Born to Ema ant I Nesua was the on 1 y daughter Takau. Takau 

then married Kanida an(i born to them was Takije, Noveipeg and Sope. 

Wi tnes 8 fJope' s story j s noth ing 1 es ~l than ev idence of possessory 

right to the Mystery II land. 

,," 

The lant witness call'?d by Nr Nar<:lneheg gives almost the same 

evidence as that of Mr IVITAU SOPE alld so I do not wish to say any 

more about it. 

Mr Nuraneheg summed up his evidence by making a closing statement 

and says that he has p t'esented to the Court. two fami ly genealogy 

diagrammes. It is intel'esting to see 110W Nr Naraneheg presented his 

case. If one observes his family trees exhibits "D" and liE" you 

oannot find Mr Naranehrg's name. Infaat he says in Exhibit "E" just 

below the top right hand Dorner in J.·(~ad in that, that exhibit II E" 

is Silus Naukae's fami.ly tree structure. Then when you explore 

Exhibit "D" which bal'es some of Naranf~heg'9 family members as 
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ment ioned in his evidence, Nr Narnneheg' 13 name cannot even be 

traced. So that to trace 1'1r Naranehe[~'B position on the family tree 

(Exhibit "D"), one must go back to Ili8 evidence to try to put him 

in the picture. 

1'1r Narnneheg commences the second part of his evidence (see M.F.I. 

I.B.) by sayinr, that, it is beoause uf tht~ stories, he had told in 

his evidence, (story about formation of Hystery J;sland) they know 

that Nystery Island is their!3:, 1'1r Naraneheg uses the term "us" 

rather then "me". He later clarified" this in cross-examination why 

he did not wish to use the terms "I and me", when asked by Mr 
.. 

Nangia if he (Ur Naraneheg) could identify wllich particular portion 

of 1'1ystel'y Island was or he is now claiming. In answer to Mr Nangia 

question. 1'1r Nnraneheg says something t:o this effect: 

"I wish to clarify ngain that when you claim, you 

claim alone for tip:? Island, I do not claim for 

any partioular pox!. I olairn the whole Island. I 

do not claim it fllr myself as you have done. I 

claim for the I\neluauhat people on the whole, I 

do not claim for Ill,>'self". 

Then 1'11.' Naraneheg commences on exhibit "8": with Lumae, an old man 

who lived at Analue Village and that Lumae was then responsible for 

the Nakama 1 a t Anal ue Vi llage. That LUl1lae was a bigman too for 

Chief Yaridawa. That after Lumae - his son Nowaipeg inheri ted his 

father'g land and fishing rights. That Nowaipeg also managed the 

secred basket for Chief Yaridawa. that Nowaipeg was in possession 

of the sncred basket unt i 1 arri va I uf th(~ church in Ane 19auha t in 

1848. lIe says that from Lumae to NONa i peG, then to Tald j e then to 

Kanida (pronouced Kanisa) I they wen~ all his great pUpUB (grand 

fathero). He says that to place hio name on the family tree would 

be ha.rd. he says that this does not mean however that he is not 

from Anelgauhat Village. That due to this, he is also the owner of 

Mystery Island. This is the end of all the evidenae aalled in the 

Mystery Island land claim. 

4. er~.,., .> @# • ..;;,,-tJX4Wlt$XJb;g&P.!#:;=\Gt."~@!N\fil!JQJA'£QA.t4.Ji sa, :':CQiMlUICitWiG\iF§lu'.i .J 
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Hav ing thorough 1 y can':assed a 11 the ev i dc~nce before this Court, I 

wish to briefly discuf.J~} what I think is the case with ownership of 

Mystery Island is. Under the Englis\1 concept of co-ownership it is 

possible for two or m'>re persons having simultaneous enjoyment of 

land. In a co-ownership situation, [our unities must be present. 

they al'e unitirc?s of p08session, interest, title and time. Unity of 

possesDion is common to all forms of co-ownership. Each co-owner is 

as IIlllch entitled to possession of any port of the land as theC~'< 
" others. 1\ co-owner cal.not point to ·nny Hpec i f ic part of the land 

and clai1ll as his own" 

and nol co-ownership. 

if he did there would be separate ownership 
" 

In the unity of interest, each joint tenant is the same in extent, 

nature alld duration, r')r in theory 0 rIa,,} they hold but one estate. 

The Ulli ly of interes t, has important consequences. Each joint 

tenant has the whole of the property, such things as rents and 

profitG are to be equally divided between them. There can be no 
" 

joint tellancy between those \O}i th interes ts of a different nature. 

There cannot be no jo i nt tenancy be tween those whose interest are 

similar but of duratiol. Any legal act for instance in conveyancing 

or a 1 ease regarding the land mus t requi re part ic ipa t ion of all 

joint tellants - Leek G 1d Moorlands D.S. -V- Clark [1952] 2 QB 788. 

Then ill the unity of title, each joint tenant must claim his title 

to the land under the same act or document. This requirement is 

satisfied if nIl the tenants acquired their rights by the same 

conveY;:\Ilue or if they simultaneous.! y took possession of land and 

acquirr>o title to it U'I adverse POSSI?SSiOIl. 

"The Law of R':'?al Property, Sir Robert Megarry and H.W.R. 

tvade" pages IIl9-421. 

Unity of time requires that encll tenant must vest at the same time. 

There ,J.l'e two except i 'ms to the nccess i ty for uni ty of time in 

conveytmce to uses and gi fts. I do not see these appropriate in my 

discussion in the My9t'~ry Island Land Claim. 

I' 
i 
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The Vanuatu Constitution provides that, "all the land in the 

Repub 1 i. c of Vanuatu b ~ longs to the ind igenous oustom owners and 

their deoenden t s". In the case before 11lf~ all parties have'proved 

they are all lIIen Anelg luhat. They have also proved their deoendents 

were also men I\nelgauhnt and thus I f'ind Lhat non of those who have 

olaimed individually o··m Nysleey I81<)\ld. I find however that, eaoh 

olo.imant and those tri~)es whom they represent and all the oustomary 

owners of Anelgauhat V i.IIage are co-m'mern of Mystery Island. This 

being tile case, I make the following findings. 

'. 
'. 

FINDINGB 

1. 

2. 

3. 

4. 

".' 

:I do find accol'ding to tile evidence before this Court that, 

Lhe original Claimant, the first, second and third 

claimants all ~rom Anelgauhat Village. 

There is no nuch thing as individual ownership 

Nystery Island as olai.med uy the original claimant Barry 
" 

Nangia. 

That according to the I\nei tYUlll custom, o\lmership of land 

commences from land to the reef. 

That although Francois Wamie[:. \'las adopted by his adoptive 

f.J.ther Namoted (his real faLher being Willie Kopitana) and 

in accordance with the COllstitutional provision I have 

refered to in the uody of my judgement has right to 

ownersilip of property is muc!1 the same as a natural child. 

5. That according to evidence of Mr Naukae, nobody owned the 

Hystery Island and th·:lt even before arrival of the first 

missionaries in 18 l18, nobody ... JaS sale owner of Mystery 

Island. 

6. That, in accordance with the> weight of all the evidenge , 

[\11 claimants and thone who1l1 they represent and all the 

custom owners of I\neIgauhat Village have jointly owned the 

lIystery since its formation. 

kl43 
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That ut various points (i,[ their Chiefly reign, the 

'Paramount Chif'fs of 1\nelgauhu.t Village adminstered the 

11yatery Island for his people but he was not a custom owner 

alone. 

8. That this bein{: the arlse I mnlce the following Declarations. 

9. 

(a) that all the claimants .3.n<1 those whom they represent 

and alI tI,e custOIll oW!1e 1'8 of 1\ne 19auhat Vi llage are 
" co-owners "f Mys tery Is l;):)1d . 

. ' 
(b) tIwt MysteJy Island be placed in the hands of the Chief 

of Anelgauhat Village (currently Chief Henry Naulita> 

who shall arrange with other Chiefs of Anelgauhat 

Village to establish a cOlllmittee to administer dnd run 

the Myster) Island Project. 

(c) that the pl'eceding sub-paragraph (b) of paragraph B is 
I 

only appli'Jable vlhere there is no committed already 

es tabl iahe(: for purposes of adminis 1er}jand running the @t) 
Mystery Island Project. 

That all the c')-owners shall meet the cost Of~tPI\~.bliCd:.dtn 

of all serv ic~' messages incurred a\)&{ u.,11 OI~~Co, .::S- (.sl 
-{-O-lJCL VRI -~ 6f VT7o, 000 

1'0. Parties have 3(1 Days 1;0 I\ppeal. 

Da ted tit i 97th day of October I 199LI. 

S. LEN/\LI/\ 
Senior Magistrate 

...... / 
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